### BYLAWS OF VILLA PARADISO NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION, INC.

INSTRUMENT # 2003110728 60 PGS

#### ARTICLE I Identity

- Section 1. Name. The name of the corporation is Villa Paradiso Neighborhood Association, Inc. (the "Neighborhood Association").
- Section 2. <u>Principal Office</u>. The initial principal office of the Neighborhood Association is at 333 South Tamiami Trail, Suite 101, Venice, Florida 34285.
- Section 3. Adoption. These Bylaws have been adopted as the Bylaws of the Association.
- Section 4. <u>Definitions</u>. Terms used in these Bylaws which are defined in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Villa Paradiso Neighborhood (the "Declaration") shall have the same meaning in these Bylaws as in the Declaration.

# ARTICLE II Powers and Duties of the Neighborhood Association

The Neighborhood Association shall have all powers granted to it by Florida law, the Master Declaration, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, and these Bylaws, all of which shall be exercised by its Board of Directors unless the exercise thereof is otherwise restricted in the Master Declaration, the Declaration, the Articles, these Bylaws or Florida law.

### ARTICLE III Membership

The Neighborhood Association shall have the following two (2) classes of membership: Class "A" Members and Class "B" Members, as described in the Declaration. Each Owner of a Lot other than the Venture shall be a Class "A" Member of the Neighborhood Association. Class "A" Members shall have the right to vote only on Neighborhood Association matters requiring a "Membership vote pursuant to the Master Declaration, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or Florida law. The Class "B" Membership shall exist prior to Turnover and shall be held by the Venture for Lots which it owns.

# ARTICLE IV Meetings of the Members

Section 1. <u>Date and Place of Meetings</u>. Meetings of the Members shall be held on the date and at the place designated by the Board of Directors.

- Section 2. <u>Annual Meeting of Members</u>. An annual meeting of the Members shall be held each year in May, or such other time as the Board of Directors may set by resolution. Subject to Article V, at each annual meeting, the Members shall elect the Board of Directors of the Neighborhood Association and may conduct such other business as may be properly brought before the meeting.
- Section 3. Special Meetings. The President of the Neighborhood Association may call special meetings of the Members. In addition, it shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting of the Members if so directed by resolution of a majority of the Board of special meeting of the Turnover, upon a petition signed by at least ten percent (10%) of the Directors or, if after the Turnover, upon a petition signed by at least ten percent (10%) of the voting interests. The notice of any special meeting shall state the date, time, and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice.
- Section 4. Notice of Meetings. Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of any meeting of the Members shall be delivered, either personally or by mail, to each Member, not more than fifty (50) nor less than fourteen (14) days before the date of such meeting, by or at the direction of the President or the Secretary. In addition, such notice shall be posted in a conspicuous place within the Neighborhood on the date of its mailing to the Members.
- Section 5. Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or in the Declaration, the presence in person or by proxy of the voting interests representing thirty percent (30%) of the total votes in the Neighborhood Association shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Neighborhood Association.
- Section 6. Adjournment of Meetings. If any meeting of Members cannot be held because a quorum is not present, a majority of the voting interests who are present at such meeting may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five (5) nor more than thirty (30) days from the time the original meeting was called. At the reconvened meeting, if a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted. If a time or place for reconvening the meeting is not fixed by those in attendance at the original meeting or if for any reason a new date is fixed for reconvening the meeting after the original meeting or if for any reason a new date is fixed for reconvening the meeting after adjournment, notice of the time and place for reconvening the meeting shall be given to Members in the manner prescribed in Section 4.
- Section 7. <u>Vote Required</u>. When a quorum is present at any meeting, a majority of the voting interests represented (in person or by proxy) at such meeting shall decide any question brought before the meeting, unless the Master Declaration, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or any applicable law provides otherwise.
- Section 8. <u>Proxies.</u> Members may vote by proxy; provided the form of proxy is subject to the reasonable approval by the Board of Directors. In lieu of proxies, sealed ballots may be utilized for election of directors.

Section 9. <u>Conduct of Meetings</u>. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Neighborhood Association and the Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meeting and record in a minute book all resolutions adopted at the meeting, as well as a record of all transactions which occurred at the meeting.

# ARTICLE V Election of Board of Directors

- Section I. <u>Number of Directors</u>. The governance and administration of the affairs of the Neighborhood Association shall be vested in a Board of Directors. The number of directors of the Neighborhood Association shall be not less than three (3) nor more than nine (9). The initial Board shall consist of the three (3) persons named in the Articles of Incorporation.
- Section 2. <u>Election or Appointment of Directors</u>. Until the first annual meeting of Members after the conveyance of ninety percent (90%) of the Lots in the Neighborhood to Owners (other than Merchant Builders), or at such earlier date as determined in the sole discretion of the Venture (the "Turnover Date"), the Venture shall have the right to appoint all of the members of the Board of Directors. At the first annual meeting of Members to occur after the Turnover Date, the Board shall be established at an odd number equal to the number of directors to be elected by the Members, which number shall be no more than nine (9). The Venture shall call a meeting within sixty (60) days of the Turnover at which the following shall occur: (a) the existing directors shall resign; (b) the Members shall elect the directors as described in Section 4; and (c) the Class "B" Membership shall terminate and be converted to a Class "A" Membership. The Venture may, in its sole and absolute discretion, permit the Members to elect a portion of the directors earlier than the Turnover Date.

Directors elected by the Members at the Turnover meeting and each annual meeting thereafter shall serve for annual terms and shall be elected by the Members at large.

In addition to any directors elected by the Members, the Venture shall have the right to appoint one (1) director until such time as ninety-five percent (95%) of the Lots in the Neighborhood are conveyed to persons other than Merchant Builders.

- Section 3. <u>Qualifications for Election</u>. Except with respect to directors appointed by the Ventures, all directors shall be Members or the spouse of a Member.
- Section 4. <u>Directors Election</u>. Prior to the Turnover, the Venture shall appoint all directors. After Turnover all of the directors shall be elected by the Class "A" Members, except for the director appointed by the Venture.
- Section 5. Nomination of Directors. Immediately prior to the Turnover meeting and prior to each annual meeting thereafter, the Members may nominate Members for election by filing a petition signed by a minimum of ten (10) Owners in good standing.

## INSTRUMENT # 2003110728 60 PGS

The names of any nominees, after having been certified by the Secretary or any other officer, that they are qualified for election and have been nominated in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws, shall be included in any proxy mailing to the Members. All candidates shall have a reasonable opportunity to communicate their qualifications to the Members and to solicit votes.

Nominations may also be made from the floor at the annual meeting of Members.

Section 6. Removal of Directors and Vacancies. Any director appointed by the Venture may be removed, with or without cause, only by the Venture. Any director elected by the Members may be removed, with or without cause, by the majority vote of the voting interests who were entitled to elect such director. Upon removal of a director, a successor shall be elected by the party entitled to elect or appoint the director so removed to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term of such director.

Any director who has three (3) consecutive unexcused absences from Board meetings, as determined by the Board, or any elected director who is delinquent in the payment of any Assessment or other charges due the Master Association or the Neighborhood Association for more than thirty (30) days, may be removed by a majority of the directors present at a regular or special meeting at which a quorum is present, and a successor may be appointed by the remaining directors. In the event of the death, disability, or resignation of a director elected by the Members, the members of the Board may elect a successor to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term of such director. The Venture shall replace its appointed directors upon death, disability, removal or resignation.

- Section 7. <u>Compensation</u>. No director shall receive a salary or any other compensation whatsoever from the Neighborhood Association for acting as such, but shall be entitled to be reimbursed for expenses reasonably incurred on behalf of the Neighborhood Association.
- Section 8. <u>Fiduciary Duty</u>. The directors shall act in good faith in a manner they reasonably believe to be in the best interests of the development of the Neighborhood and the purpose of the Neighborhood Association.

# ARTICLE VI Meetings of the Board of Directors

- Section 1. <u>Organizational Meeting</u>. The organizational meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held within ten (10) days after the first annual meeting of the Members following Turnover at such time and place as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors.
- Section 2. <u>Regular Meetings</u>. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the directors, but commencing with the Turnover, at least four (4) regular meetings shall be held during each fiscal year, with at least one (1) per quarter; provided, however, that the annual meeting shall constitute

a regular meeting. Notice of the time and place of any meeting shall be posted in a conspicuous place within the Neighborhood at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the time of the meeting, unless the meeting is an emergency special meeting. In the alternative, notice of the meeting may be mailed or delivered to all Members at least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting. At such time as the Neighborhood Association has 100 or more members, notice of meetings of the Board of Directors may be published, or in the alternative, the Board may provide Members with a pre-arranged schedule of meetings of the Board.

- Section 3. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by written notice signed by the President or by any three (3) directors. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the nature of any special business to be considered. The giving of notice of any special meeting shall comply with the notice provisions set forth in Section 2 of this Article VI.
- Section 4. <u>Meetings Concerning Assessments</u>. An Assessment may not be levied at a Board meeting unless the notice of the meeting includes a statement that Assessments will be considered and the nature of the Assessments.
- Section 5. Quorum of Board of Directors. At all meetings of the Board of Directors, a majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Board of Directors. If any meeting of the Board of Directors cannot be held because a quorum is not present, a majority of the directors who are present at such meeting may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five (5) nor more than thirty (30) days from the date the original meeting was called. At the reconvened meeting, if a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted provided that notice of such reconvened meeting shall comply with the notice provisions set forth in Section 2 of this Article VI.
- Section 6. <u>Conduct of Meetings</u>. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Secretary shall keep a minute book containing written records of meetings of the Board of Directors, recording therein all resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors and all transactions and proceedings occurring at such meetings as well as a notation as to any Director who abstained from voting or voted contrary to the prevailing opinion. No votes at any Board of Directors meeting may be by proxy or secret ballot, except that secret ballots may be utilized in the election of officers.
- Section 7. Open Meetings. All meetings of the Board shall be open to all Members, but Members other than directors may not participate in any discussion or deliberation unless permission to speak is requested on his or her behalf by a director and granted by the President. In such case, the President may limit the time any Member may speak.
- Section 8. <u>Telephone Meetings</u>. Any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors may be held by telephone conference, at which each participating director and any member in attendance can hear and be heard by all other participating directors.

### ARTICLE VII Officers

- Section 1. Officers. The officers of the Neighborhood Association shall be a President and Vice President and a Secretary and Treasurer to be elected from among the members of the Board. The Board of Directors may appoint such other officers, includir (1) or more Assistant Secretaries and one (1) or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall dee desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed from time by the Board of Directors. Any two (2) or more offices may be held by the same person, the offices of President and Secretary, or President and Treasurer.
- Section 2. <u>Election, Term of Office and Vacancies</u>. The officers of the Neigh Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the of Directors during a fiscal year. A vacancy in any office arising because of death, resignemoval, or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion term.
- Section 3. <u>Removal</u>. Any officer may be removed by a majority vote of the I Directors in the sole discretion of the Board and the removal of a director who also is an shall automatically act as a removal from such director's position as an officer.
- Section 4. <u>Resignation</u>. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written the Board of Directors, the President, or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect date of the receipt of such notice or at a later time specified in the notice and unless othe specified in the notice, the acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make effective.

## ARTICLE VIII Duties of Officers

The officers of the Neighborhood Association shall each have such powers and generally pertain to their respective offices, as well as such powers and duties as are from time specifically conferred or imposed by the Board of Directors.

- Section 1. <u>President</u>. The President shall be the chief executive officer of th Neighborhood Association and shall:
  - (a) Act as presiding officer at all meetings of the Members and the F Directors.
  - (b) Call special meetings of the Members and the Board of Directors
  - (c) Sign, with the Secretary or Treasurer, if the Board of Directors so all checks, contracts, promissory notes, leases, subleases and oth

preceding year; make a full and accurate report on matters and business pertaining to the office of Treasurer to the Members at the annual meeting and make all reports required by law.

(c) The Treasurer may have the assistance of an accountant or auditor, who shall be employed by the Neighborhood Association. In the event the Neighborhood Association enters into a management agreement, it shall be proper to delegate any or all of the Treasurer's functions to the management agent as is deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

## ARTICLE IX Committees

Section 1. <u>Standing Committees</u>. Each year after the Turnover, the President, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, shall designate the chairman and members of each of the following committees:

- (a) Grounds Committee. The Grounds Committee shall advise the Board of
  Directors on matters concerning maintenance of the Common Property.
  No live trees shall be moved from the Common Property nor shall any
  alteration or improvement be made to the Common Property except with
  the approval of the Board of Directors.
- (b) <u>Newsletter Committee</u>. The Newsletter Committee shall supervise and control the preparation of a periodic newsletter for distribution to all Members.
- (c) <u>Legal and Bylaws Committee</u>. The Legal and Bylaws Committee shall be charged with the publication and interpretation of the Rules and Regulations, Bylaws, and Declaration, and generally with all matters of a legal nature pertaining to the Neighborhood Association.
- Section 2. Ad Hoc Committees. The President, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, may from time to time appoint such ad hoc committees, with such powers and composition as the President, with the approval of the Board of Directors shall determine.
- Section 3. <u>Powers of Committees</u>. The several committees shall act only as committees, and the individual members thereof shall have no power or authority to act on behalf of the Board of Directors or the Neighborhood Association. All committees shall be advisory only, and shall report to and be under the supervision of the Board of Directors. Committee members may be removed, with or without cause, upon majority vote of the Board of Directors.
- Section 4. <u>Committee Meetings</u>. All meetings of any committee of the Neighborhood Association shall be open to all Members. Notice of the time and place of any committee meeting shall be posted in a conspicuous place within the Neighborhood at least forty-eight (48)

- Section 3. Hearing. If a hearing is requested within the allotted fourteen (14) day period, the hearing shall be held before a committee comprised of at least three (3) members appointed by the Board of Directors who are not officers, directors or employees of the Neighborhood Association, or the spouse, parent, child, brother of sister or an officer, director or employee. If the committee, by majority vote, does not approve a proposed fine or suspension, it may not be imposed. Prior to the effectiveness of any sanction hereunder, proof of proper notice shall be placed in the minutes of the meeting. Such proof shall be deemed adequate if a copy of the notice, together with a statement of the date and manner of delivery, is entered by the officer, director, or agent who delivered such notice. The notice requirement shall be deemed satisfied if the accused appears at the meeting. The minutes of the meeting shall contain a written statement of the results of the hearing and the sanction, if any, imposed.
- Section 4. Additional Enforcement Rights. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, the Association may elect to enforce any provisions of the Declaration, these Bylaws, or the Rules and Regulations by self-help (specifically including, but not limited to, the towing of vehicles that are in violation of parking rules and regulations) or by suit at law in equity to enjoin any violation or to recover monetary damages or both without the necessity of compliance with the procedure set forth above. In any such action, to the maximum extent permissible, the violator shall pay all costs, including reasonable attorneys' and paralegals' fees actually incurred by the Neighborhood Association.

## ARTICLE XII Fiscal Management

- Section 1. <u>Fiscal Year</u>. The fiscal year of the Neighborhood Association shall commence upon the first (1<sup>st</sup>) day of January and conclude on the thirty-first (31<sup>st</sup>) day of December.
- Section 2. <u>Depositories</u>. The funds of the Neighborhood Association shall be deposited in such accounts as may be selected by the Board of Directors, including without limitation checking and savings accounts in one (1) or more banks and/or savings and loan associations, Certificates of Deposit, U.S. Treasury Bills, and money market accounts with an investment firm or firms, all in accordance with resolutions approved by the Board of Directors. The funds shall be used only for lawful purposes of the Neighborhood Association.
- Section 3. <u>Expenses</u>. The receipts and expenditures of the Neighborhood Association may be credited and charged to accounts as the Board of Directors may determine, in accordance with good accounting practices as set forth in Section 7 below.
- Section 4. <u>Reserve Accounts</u>. The Neighborhood Association may, but shall not be required to, establish and maintain an adequate reserve account for the periodic maintenance, repair and replacement of the Common Property, including the Exclusive Common Area.
- Section 5. <u>Budget</u>. The Board of Directors shall adopt a budget for each fiscal year that shall include the estimated funds required to defray the expenses of the Neighborhood

## INSTRUMENT # 2003110728 60 PGS

Association for the fiscal year and to provide and maintain funds for the accounts established by the Board of Directors, in accordance with good accounting practices as set forth in Section 7 below. The Neighborhood Association shall provide each Member with a copy of the annual budget or a written notice that a copy of the budget is available upon request at no charge to the Member. The copy of the annual budget or notice regarding availability must be provided within fifteen (15) days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.

- Section 6. Fidelity Bonds. The Neighborhood Association shall, if available at a reasonable cost, purchase blanket fidelity bonds for all directors, officers and employees of the Neighborhood Association and for any management agent who controls or disburses funds of the Neighborhood Association and any contractor handling or responsible for Neighborhood Association funds. The following provisions shall govern the Neighborhood Association's purchase of the bonds.
  - (a) Each fidelity bond purchased by the Neighborhood Association shall name the Neighborhood Association as an obligee of the bond.
  - (b) The premiums for bonds shall be paid by the Neighborhood Association.
  - (c) The fidelity bonds shall cover the maximum funds that will be in the custody of directors, officers or employees of the Neighborhood Association, or a management agent, at any time while the bonds are in force.
  - (d) Each bond shall include a provision requiring ten (10) days' written notice to the Neighborhood Association before the bond can be canceled or substantially modified for any reason.
- Section 7. <u>Accounts and Reports</u>. The following management standards of performance will be followed unless the Board of Directors by resolution specifically determines otherwise:
  - (a) accrual accounting (exclusive of depreciation and amortization), as defined by generally accepted accounting principles, shall be employed;
  - (b) accounting and controls should conform to generally accepted accounting principles;
  - (c) cash accounts of the Neighborhood Association shall not be commingled with any other accounts;
  - (d) no remuneration shall be accepted by a manager from vendors, independent contractors, or others providing goods or services to the Neighborhood Association, whether in the form of commissions, finder's fees, service fees, prizes, gifts, or otherwise;

- (e) any financial or other interest which a manager may have in any firm
  providing goods or services to the Neighborhood Association shall be
  disclosed promptly to the Board of Directors;
- (f) commencing at the end of the month in which the first Lot is sold, financial reports shall be prepared for the Neighborhood Association at least annually containing:
  - an income statement reflecting all income and expense activity for the preceding period on an accrual basis (excluding depreciation and amortization);
  - (ii) a variance report reflecting the status of all accounts in an "actual" versus "approved" budget format;
  - (iii) a balance sheet as of the last day of the preceding period; and
  - (iv) a delinquency report listing all Owners who are delinquent in paying any Assessments at the time of the report and describing the status of any action to collect such Assessments which remain delinquent (an Assessment shall be considered delinquent fifteen (15) days after the date due unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors).
- (g) an annual report consisting of at least the following shall be distributed to all Members within sixty (60) days after the close of the fiscal year; (1) a balance sheet; (2) an operating (income) statement; and (3) a statement of changes in financial position for the fiscal year;
- (h) accounting records of the Neighborhood Association shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years after the date of the records.
- Section 8. <u>Agreements, Contracts, Deeds, Leases, Checks, Etc.</u> All agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks, and other instruments of the Neighborhood Association shall be executed by the President and Secretary or by such other members of the Board of Directors or officers of the Neighborhood Association as may be designated by resolution of the Board of Directors.

## Section 9. Books and Records.

(a) Inspection by Owners and Mortgagees. The Declaration, Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, Supplements, Amendments to the Declaration, minutes of meetings of the Members, the Board of Directors, and committees; current insurance policies, Neighborhood Association contracts, and copies of plans, permits, warranties, and other

## INSTRUMENT # 2003110728 60 PGS

items provided by the Developer, shall be made available for inspection and copying by any Mortgagee, Owner, or by his or her duly appointed representative at any reasonable time and for a purpose reasonably related to his or her interest as an Owner, at the office of the Neighborhood Association. Such records shall include a record of receipts and expenditures and accounts for each Owner, which accounts shall designate the names and addresses of the Owners, the due dates and amount of each Assessment, the amounts paid upon the account and the balance due. Accounts of Owners shall only be available for inspection by the Board of Directors, the officers and the Owner or such Owner's Mortgagee, unless otherwise required by law. Minutes of grievance hearings will not be released to any Person other than the Person subject to the disciplinary action. Books and records of the Neighborhood Association may be kept at the Neighborhood Association office at the Properties or off-site at the office designated by the Developer. Books and records of the Neighborhood Association shall be maintained for a period of at least seven (7) years after the date of the books and records.

- (b) Rules for Inspection. The Neighborhood Association shall make the foregoing records available for inspection and/or copying within ten (10) business days after written request for inspection. The Board of Directors may establish reasonable rules with respect to:
  - (i) notice to be given to the custodian of the records;
  - (ii) hours and days of the week when an inspection may be made; and
  - (iii) payment of the cost of reproducing copies of documents requested.
- (c) Inspection by Directors. Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books, records, and documents of the Neighborhood Association and the physical properties owned or controlled by the Neighborhood Association. The right of inspection by a director includes the right to make extracts and a copy of relevant documents at the expense of the Neighborhood Association.

Section 10. <u>Insurance</u>. The Neighborhood Association shall procure, maintain and keep in full force and effect insurance as may be required by the Declaration to protect the interests of the Neighborhood Association and the Owners.

## ARTICLE XIII Miscellaneous

- Section 1. <u>Parliamentary Rules</u>. Robert's Rules of Order (then current edition) shall govern the conduct of Neighborhood Association proceedings when not in conflict with Florida law, the Articles of Incorporation, the Master Declaration, the Declaration, or these Bylaws.
- Section 2. <u>Construction</u>. If there are conflicts between the provisions of Florida law, the Articles of Incorporation, the Master Declaration, the Declaration, and/or these Bylaws, the provisions of Florida law, the Master Declaration, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, and the Bylaws (in that order) shall prevail.
- Section 3. <u>Validity</u>. If any Bylaw or Rule or Regulation is adjudicated to be invalid, such fact shall not affect the validity of any other Bylaw or Rule or Regulation.
- Section 4. <u>Notices</u>. Unless otherwise provided in these Bylaws, all notices, demands, bills, statements, or other communications under these Bylaws shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally or if sent by United States Mail, first class postage prepaid:
  - (a) if to an Owner or Member, at the address which the Owner or Member has designated in writing and filed with the Secretary or, if no such address has been designated, at the address of the Lot of the Owner or Member; or
  - (b) if to the Neighborhood Association, the Board of Directors, or the Manager, at the principal office of the Neighborhood Association or the Manager, if any, or at such other address as shall be designated by notice in writing to the Owners pursuant to this Section.
- Section 5. Amendments. Until Turnover, the Venture may amend these Bylaws in its sole and absolute discretion. Prior to Turnover, the Class "A" Members shall have no right to amend these Bylaws. After Turnover, amendments to these Bylaws shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors. However, the percentage of votes necessary to amend a specific clause shall be not less than the prescribed percentage of affirmative votes required for action to be taken under that clause. No amendment may remove, revoke, or modify any right or privilege of the Venture without the written consent of the Venture or the assignee of such right or privilege. Amendments to the Bylaws shall be recorded in the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida.
- Section 6. Rules and Regulations. The Neighborhood Association, through the Board of Directors, may adopt Rules and Regulations consistent with the rights and duties established by the Master Declaration and the Declaration. The Rules and Regulations as amended, duly adopted by the Board of Directors, shall by reference be incorporated herein.

f:\6080\vp-bylaws



This Instrument Prepared By: Margaret S. Frook, Esquire BOONE, BOONE, BOONE & HINES, P.A. P.O. Box 1596 Venice, Florida 34284 RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS
INSTRUMENT # 1999103046 5 PGS
1999 JUL 29 01:53 PM
KAREN E. RUSHING
CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT
SARASOTA COUNTY,FLORIDA
DCLINGER Receipt#125254

# FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION TO THE DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR VENETIA NEIGHBORHOOD NUMBER ONE

WHEREAS, a Subdivision known as Venetia has been developed in Sarasota County, Florida, and is subject to the terms, provisions, covenants, conditions, and restrictions of that certain Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Venetia Neighborhood Number One (the "Declaration") recorded in Official Records Instrument #1998104302, public records of Sarasota County, Florida; and

WHEREAS, VENETIAN DEVELOPMENT, INC., (the "Developer") is the developer of the Subdivision subject to the Declaration; and

WHEREAS, Article IX, Section 1, of the Declaration permits Developer to make additional lands subject to the Declaration without the consent of the Members;

NOW, THEREFORE, Developer amends the Declaration, as follows:

The property described on Exhibit "A" attached hereto is hereby made subject to the Declaration and to the jurisdiction of the Neighborhood Association. Such property shall be included in the Properties as such term is defined in the Declaration.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has set its hand and seal this 1999.

Witnesses:

VENETIAN DEVELOPMENT, INC., a

Florida corporation

Sign Margaret & Joseph Print MARGARET S. FROUK

Thomas H. Taylor, Jr., as Presiden

Print RUTH V. RICHARDSON

1301 BRD. Roca.

# CONSENT TO FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION TO THE DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR VENETIA NEIGHBORHOOD NUMBER ONE

The undersigned, being the holder of one or more mortgages which encumber the property described in the First Supplemental Declaration to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Venetia Neighborhood Number One, to which this Consent is attached, hereby consents to the Supplemental Declaration, and agrees that any mortgage held by the undersigned encumbering the property described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto is subject and subordinate to the terms and provisions of the Declaration.

Witnesses:	FLORIDA COMMUNITY BANK
Sign Find Le Cloud Print Linder Les Anderberg	Thomas S. Junker, As President - Charlotte County
Sign Maron H. Rest Print SHARON H. BEST	
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF CHARLOTTE	
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing day of June, 1999, by Thomas S. Junker, a COMMUNITY BANK, on behalf of said bank. I	He is personally known to me or produced
	NOTARY PUBLIC
	Sign Jelle Office Sprint Super State Gas
(SEAL)	
My Commission Expires:	
LINDA LEE ANDERBERG	

### STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF SARASOTA

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of June, 1999, by Thomas H. Taylor, Jr., as President of VENETIAN

DEVELOPMENT, INC., a Florida corporation, on behalf of the corporation, who is personally known to me or produced \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ as identification.

NOTARY PUBLIC

Sign Margaret Stark
Print MARGARET S. FROOK

(SEAL)

My Commission Expires:

MARGARET S. FROOK
COMMISSION & CC615854
EXPIRES FEB 16, 2001
SONDED THROUGH
ATLANTIC BONDING CO., INC.

# CONSENT TO FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION TO THE DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR VENETIA NEIGHBORHOOD NUMBER ONE

The undersigned, being the holder of one or more mortgages which encumber the property described in the First Supplemental Declaration to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Venetia Neighborhood Number One, to which this Consent is attached, hereby consents to the Supplemental Declaration, and agrees that any mortgage held by the undersigned encumbering the property described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto is subject and subordinate to the terms and provisions of the Declaration.

Witnesses: t	FIRST SOUTH BANK
Sign Mrue Dyke Print Janet E. Dyke	By Jack D. Courson, J. J. P. As Vice President
Sign Jeneu & Cenette Healer	As vice Plesident
Print TAMBER L CARRESTA WASSLER	J. & J. HOMES, INC., a Florida corporation
Sign Ofenne T White	By Jacques Cloyder as President
Sign Sharm & Best	7 9
Print SHARON H. BEST	
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF SARASOTA  I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument was Jack D. Courson, Jr., as Vice President of FIRST SOUTH BANK, produced    Jonet F. Dykalentification.   MY COMMISSION & CC112138 EMPRES   Jonuary 29, 2002   BONDED THAU TROY FAMI INSURANCE, INC.  (SEAL)	as acknowledged before me this 11 day of June, 1999, by on behalf of said bank. He is personally known to me or NOTARY-PUBLIC  Sign  Print  10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1
My Commission Expires:	V
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF SARASOTA  I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument we	as acknowledged before me this 🙇 💆 day of June, 1999, by
Jacques Cloutier, as President of J. & J. HOMES, INC., on behalf produced as identification.	of said corporation. He is personally known to the or
as identification.  Sharon H. Best Commission # CC 734586 Expres May 12, 2002 BONDED THRU My Commission Expires:	NOTARY PUBLIC Sign Marra & Best Print SHARON H. BEST

Exhibit "A"

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST BOUNDARY CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 34. TOWNSHIP 39 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST. SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA: THENCE SOO 17'49 W. ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY. LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 34 (BE)NG THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS DESCRIPTION), FOR 2651.09 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST BOUNDARY: CORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 34; THENCE SOO" 17'43"W, ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 34. FOR 1308.29 FEET TO THE HORTHEAST BOUNDARY CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 34, FOR 1908, 29 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST BOUNDARY CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 34. SAME ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST BOUNDARY CORNER OF CIRCLE WOODS OF VENICE A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION 2, AS RECORDED IN CONDOMINIUM PLAT BOOK 7, PAGE 18 WOODS OF VENICE A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION 2, AS RECORDED IN CONDOMINIUM PLAT BOOK 7, PAGE 18 WOODS OF VENICE RECORDS OF SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA: THENCE N88°38'32"W, ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE NORTH 3/4 OF SAID SECTION 34. SAME ALSO BEING THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID CIRCLE WOODS OF VENICE A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION 2 AND THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF SAID OF SAID CIRCLE WOODS OF VENICE A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION 2 AND THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF SAID NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF CIRCLE WOODS OF VENICE A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION 2. RESPECTIVELY, FOR 1357.47 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING: THENCE CONTINUE IN89°38'32"W ALONG SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY, LINE OF THE NORTH 3/4 OF SECTION 34, SAME ALSO BEING SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH BOUNDARY LINE OF CIRCLE WOODS OF VENICE A CONDOMINIUM, SECTION 2 AND THE NORTH BOUNDARY, LINE OF HOURGLASS LAKE ESTATES, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 25, PAGE 45 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA. RESPECTIVELY, FOR 1300.20 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF VENETIA - PHASE IA, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 40, PAGE I OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA: THENCE THE FOLLOWING TWENTY THREE (23) COURSES ALONG THE FASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID VENETIA - PHASE IA: (1) THENCE NOO?21'28"E, FOR 25.00 FEET. THE EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID VENETIA - PHASE IA: (1) THENCE NOO"21'28'E, FOR 25.00 FEET,
TO THE FOINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT CURVE. CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY: (2) THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, WITH A RADIAL BEARING NIS 43'00"E, HAVING A RADIUS WESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURYE, WITH A RAUTAL BEARING HID 43 OU E. HAVING A RAUTAL OF 560.00 FEET. A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 18°32'15", AN ARC LENGTH OF 181.18 FEET. AND A CHORD BEARING N65°00'53 W. FOR 180.39 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY: (3) THENCE N55°44'45"W. FOR BEARING N65°00'53 W. FOR 180.39 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY: (3) THENCE N55°44'45"W. FOR BEARING N65°00'53 W. FOR 180.39 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY: (3) THENCE N55°44'45"W. FOR 97.21 FEET: (4) THENCE N34°40'01'E, FOR 27.74 FEET: (5) THENCE N34°15'15'E, FOR 92.26 FEET: (6) THENCE N02°14'55'E, FOR 47.17 FEET: (7) THENCE N34°15'15'E, FOR 120.00 FEET: (8) THENCE S55° 44'45'E. FOR 122.01 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE. CONCAVE THENCE S55° 44'45'E. FOR 122.01 FEET TO THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 280.00 NORTHERLY: (9) THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF SEADING FEET. A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 33°53'47". AN ARC LENGTH OF 165.65 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING ST2°41'39°E, FOR 163.24 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; (10) THENCE \$89°38'32°E, FOR 77.27 FEET: (1:1) THENCE N60°53'23"W, FOR 24.86 FEET: (12) THENCE N39°24'01"W, FOR 318.26 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT CURVE. CONCAVE WESTERLY: (13) THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, WITH A RADIAL BEARING N73°50'30"W, HAVING A RADIUS OF 260.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 24°12'17". AN ARC LENGTH OF 109.84 FEET, AND A CHORD BEARING NO4°03'22 E. FOR 109.02 FEET TO THE POINT OF TANGENCY; (14) THENCE NO8°02'46"W. FOR 37.53 FEET: (15) THENCE N22°30'31"E. FOR 184.84 FEET: (16) THENCE N54°34'42"W. FOR 93.89 FEET: (17) THENCE SBIOST' 14"W. FOR 25.82 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT CURVE; CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY; (18) THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE. WITH A RADIAL BEARING S81\*57"14"W. HAVING A RADIUS OF 805.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE CURVE, WITH A RADIAL BEARING SBI\*57'14"W, HAVING A RADIUS OF 805.00 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 44°07'36". AN ARC LENGTH OF 619.98 FEET. AND A CHORD BEARING N30°06'35"W, FOR 604.77 FEET TO THE POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE WITH A CURVE. CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY: (19) THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1040.00 FEET, A CENTRAL NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1040.00 FEET, A CENTRAL NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF 43.76 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING N53°22'43"W, FOR 43.76 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT LINE; (20) THENCE NOT OF 101 OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT CURVE. CONCAVE SOUTHERLY: (21) THENCE FASTERLY IALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, WITH A RADIAL BEARING SIR\*48'53"W. HAVING A THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, WITH A RADIAL BEARING SI8"48"53"W. HAVING A RADIUS OF 455.00 FEET. A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 01°26'03", AN ARC LENGTH OF 11.39 FEET, AND A CHORD BEARING S70°28'06"E, FOR 11.39 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT LINE: (22) THENCE N 20° 14'55"E. FOR 120.00 FEET: (23) THENCE N10"30"05"W. FOR 57.51 FEET: THENCE LEAVING SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF VENETIA - PHASE IA, NOO-21'46'E. FOR 319.64
THENCE LEAVING SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF VENETIA - PHASE IA, NOO-21'46'E. FOR 319.64
THENCE NZC'22'29'E, FOR 35.78 FEET; THENCE N40-28'43'E, FOR 149.89 FEET TO THE POINT
FEET: THENCE NZC'22'29'E, FOR 35.78 FEET; THENCE NAO-28'43'E, FOR 149.89 FEET TO THE POINT
OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVEL WITH A RADIAL BEARING NITON HAVING A RADIUS OF 166.00 FEET. CENTRAL ANGLE OF 40°34'56". AN ARC LENGTH OF 117.58 FEET, AND A CHORD BEARING N52°41'22"E. FOR 115.13 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT LINE; THENCE \$48.36.50 E. FOR 115.13 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT LINE; THENCE \$48°36'50'E. FOR 1350.57 FEET; THENCE \$38°00'47'E. FOR 120.00 FEET; THENCE \$46°03'37'E. FOR 50.50 FEET; THENCE \$38°00'47'E. FOR 120.00 FEET; THENCE \$55'13'E. FOR 20.61 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE. CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF \$40.00 FEET. A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 06°48'13". AN ARC LENGTH OF CURVE. HAVING A RADIUS OF 640.00 FEET. A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 06°48'13". AN ARC LENGTH OF 76.00 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING \$15'07'E. FOR 75.95 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NOW. TANGENT LINE; THENCE \$57°27'08'F FOR 343 27 FEET; THENCE \$32°32'52'W. FOR 76.00 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING N48'35'07'E, FOR 75.95 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON- TANGENT LINE; THENCE \$57°27'08'E, FOR 343.27 FEET; THENCE \$32°32'52'W, FOR 86.56 FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 410.00 FEET. A CENTRAL ANGLE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 410.00 FEET. A CENTRAL ANGLE STATE OF 21°33'37", AN ARC LENGTH OF 154.28 FEET AND A CHORD BEARING \$43°19'40"W, FOR 153.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT LINE; THENCE S35-53'31"E. FOR 120.00 FEET; THENCE S40"14"E, FOR 58.27 FEET; THENCE S40"18'38"E. FOR 120.00 FEET; THENCE S20"41'08"W. FOR 285.58 FEET; THENCE S00"21'28"W. FOR 120.00 FEET; THENCE S57"25'17"W. FOR SZOTALOB W. FOR Z85.58 FEEL: IMENCE SOO ZI Z8 W. FOR 120.00 FEET: THENCE SOO ZI Z8 W. FOR 145.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING Z.323.133 SOURCE FEET OR 53.33 ACRES 100 THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING Z.323.133 SOURCE FEET OR 53.33 ACRES 100 THE POINT OF TH 2

Prepared by and Return to:
Richard A. Ulrich, Esq.
Ulrich, Scarlett, Wickman & Dean, P.A.
713 S. Orange Avenue, Suite 201
Sarasota, Florida 34236



# CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT TO BYLAWS OF VILLA PARADISO NEIGHBORHOOD

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that the undersigned, being the President and Secretary, respectively, of VILLA PARADISO NEGIBORHOOD ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida not for profit corporation (hereinafter the "Neighborhood Association"), incorporated for the purposes of providing an entity for the operation of VILLA PARADISO NEIGHBORHOOD, recorded in Official Records Instrument #2003110728, 60 pages, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida, and as amended from time to time, certify that the Amendment which appears below as duly adopted by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at the meeting of the Board of Directors of Villa Paradiso Neighborhood Association, Inc., held on October 23, 2017.

#### **AMENDMENT**

Resolved that the Bylaws of Villa Paradiso Neighborhood Association, Inc. are amended in the following manner:

AMENDMENT CODING: Additions are indicated by underlining and italics and deletions by strikeout.

#### 1. ARTICLE XI - Discipline

Section 1. Enforcement. The Board of Directors shall have the power to impose reasonable fines, not to exceed Fifty Five Hundred dollars (\$50.00 500.00) per violation, per day up to a total of Twenty Thousand Dollars (\$20,000.00), which shall constitute an automatic and continuing lien upon the Lot of the violating Owner, to preclude *Owners*, contractors, subcontractors, agents and other invitees of an Owner or occupant or guests of an owner, from the Neighborhood for violation of from violating any duty imposed under the Declaration, these Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations; provided, however, nothing herein shall authorize the Neighborhood Association or the Board of Directors to limit an Owner's or occupant's ingress and egress to or from the Owner's Lot. In the event that any Owner, occupant, contractor, subcontractor, agent or other guests and invitees of a Lot, violates the Declaration, these Bylaws, or the Rules and Regulations, and a fine is imposed, the fine shall first be assessed against the occupant residing therein; provided, however, if the fine is not paid by the occupant within the tie period set by the Board of Rectors, the Owner shall pay the fine upon notice from the Neighborhood Association. Fines are considered User Assessments. The failure of the Board of Directors to enforce any provision of the Declaration or Bylaws shall not be deemed a waiver of the right of the Board of Directors to do so thereafter.

Section 2. Notice. A fine or suspension may not be imposed by the Board of Administration without at least fourteen (14) days' notice to the person sought to be fined or suspended and an opportunity for a hearing before a committee of at least three (3) members appointed by the Board, who are not officers, directors or employees of the Association, or the spouse, parent, child, brother or sister of an officer, director or employee. If the committee, by majority vote, does not approve a proposed fine

or suspension, it may not be imposed. The role of the committee is limited to determining whether to confirm or reject the fine or suspension levied by the Board. If the Board of Administration imposes a fine or suspension, the Association must provide written notice of such fine or suspension by mail or hand delivery to the parcel owner and, if applicable, to any tenant, licensee or invitee of the parcel owner. Prior to imposition of any sanction hereunder, the Board of Directors or its delegate shall serve the accused with written notice describing (a) the nature of the alleged violation, (b) the proposed sanction to be imposed, (c) a period of not less than fourteen (14) days within which the alleged violator may present a written request to the Board of Directors for a hearing; and (d) a statement that the proposed sanction shall be imposed as contained in the notice unless a challenge has been requested within ten (10) days of the notice.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have set their hands and seals as President and Secretary; on this 25 day of October, 2017.

VILLA PARADISO NEIGHBORHOOD

ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida not for profit corporation Print Name: DADIO Witness as to President Norman Braun, President Print Name: Witness as to President WITNESSES: Print Name: DAVIG Witness (s)to Secretary Diane Schmalz, Secretary Print Name: Witness as to President STATE OF FLORIDA ) COUNTY OF SARASOTA The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 25, day of October, 2017, by Norman Braun, President, and Diane Schmalz as Secretary of Villa Paradiso Neighborhood Association, Inc., a Florida not for profit corporation, on behalf of said corporation, who are personally known to me as identification. or have produced

> Print Name:\_\_ Notary Public

My Commission Expires: /2-30-2017

